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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 

To the Governing Board of the  
Merced County Association of Governments 
Merced, California 
 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Merced County Association 
of Governments (the Association) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Association’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Association’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Merced County Association of Governments, as of June 30, 
2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3-9 and 40-46 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Association’s basic financial statements.  The other schedules, as listed in the table of 
contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. 

The Other Schedules as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 7, 
2015, on our consideration of the Association’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Association’s internal control over financial reporting and  

 

Clovis, California 
December 7, 2015 
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The management of Merced County Association of Governments (MCAG) presents the following narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2015.  The financial information 
presented here should be considered in conjunction with the financial statements presented in the following 
pages.   

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
 Association’s Total Net Position, as shown on the Statement of Net Position, for all fund types for the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 is $9,423,138.  This is a decrease of $800,257 from the ending balance 
of the prior fiscal year.   

 
 Total liabilities as shown on the Statement of Net Position for all fund types for the fiscal year ending 

June 30, 2015 are $3,457,735.  This is a net increase from the prior year of $3,111,446.   
 

 Regional Transportation Impact Fee Fund (RTIF) was established for the collection of one-time fees from 
new development to mitigate their impact on the regional road network.  The revenue sources for this 
fund are the member agencies or the local jurisdictions within Merced County.  For Fiscal-Year 2014-
2015, revenues were $803,893, a decrease of $206,673 from the prior year.  Total expenditures were 
$577,043, an increase of $538,527 from the previous year; these funds were used for the 
Atwater/Merced Express Way project.  The result of this activity was a decrease to the fund balance of 
$226,850.    
 

 During the 2014-2015 fiscal year, the Local Transportation Fund decreased by $585,151, leaving a fund 
balance of $ 2,485,312.  Revenues received were less than budgeted, however, the fund had more than 
sufficient reserves to cover the shortage allowing for all budgeted appropriations to be paid from the fund.   
 

 $9,051,108 of all Primary Government net assets represents resources that are subject to restrictions on 
how they may be used.  The restricted governmental funds include RTIF, LTF, State Exchange Funds, 
State Transit Assistance Fund, SAFE and Non-major Governmental Funds.   
 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as in introduction to MCAG's basic financial statements.  
MCAG’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.  This report also 
contains other required supplementary information. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 

 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of MCAG's 
finances, in a matter similar to a private-sector business.  These statements provide both long-term and short-
term information about MCAG’s overall status. 
 
The focus is on both MCAG as a whole and the fund financial statements, including the major individual funds of 
the government and business-type categories, as well as fiduciary funds, and component units.  Both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic financial statements) categorize primary 
activities as either governmental or business types.  In the government-wide statement of net assets, both the 
governmental and business-type activities columns are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and are 
reflected, on a full accrual basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt 
and obligations.  Each presentation provide valuable information that can be analyzed and compared (between 
years and between agencies) to enhance the usefulness of the information. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of MCAG's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial picture of MCAG is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position changed during the most recent 
fiscal year.  All changes in new assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expense are reported in this 
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but unused 
vacation leave). 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific 
activities or objectives.  MCAG uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.  All of MCAG's funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, 
proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such 
information may be useful in evaluating an agency’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the association’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund 
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances 
provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
 
The Association’s governmental funds include the General Fund and six Special Revenue Funds.  The Special 
Revenue Funds include the Regional Transportation Impact Fee Fund (RTIF), the Local  
 
Transportation Fund (LTF), the State Exchange Fund, the State Transit Assistance Fund, the Service Authority 
for Freeway Emergencies Fund (SAFE), and the Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Fund (AVA).  The General 
Fund accounts for the primary planning activities of MCAG.   
 
The Special Revenue Funds account for activity for which the receipts of federal, state and local monies are 
designated for specific purposes.  
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
Proprietary Funds report activity financed and operated like a private entity either as an enterprise fund or as 
an internal service fund.  For MCAG the proprietary fund is the component unit Merced Data Special Services, 
Inc.  Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only 
in more detail.  In the propriety fund, income is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
incurred.   
 
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of other parties outside the government.  
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those 
funds are not available to support the Association’s own programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds is 
much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to the full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governments’ financial position.  In 
the case of MCAG, assets exceed liabilities by $9,424,138 for all funds, at the close of the fiscal year. 
 

Merced County Association of Governments 
Primary Government and Component Unit – Statement of Net Position 

 

 Primary Government 
Business-Type 

Component Unit Total 

  2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Assets:            
Current Assets   12,155,634  12,572,793      272,823        258,777   12,428,457   12,831,570 

    Capital Assets (net)        453,417       504,271                -                  -        453,417        504,271 

Total Assets 12,609,051  13,077,064 272,823 258,777 12,881,874  13,335,841 

             
Liabilities:            

Current Liabilities  3,430,880    3,061,459     1,908     1,908   3,432,788    3,063,367 

Non-current Liabilities        24,947        48,079           -           -       24,947         48,079 

Total Liabilities   3,455,827    3,109,538     1,908     1,908   3,457,735    3,111,446 

             

Net Position:            

  Invested in Fixed Assets 
   (net / related debt) 

   
405,310  

  
432,320              -                 -          405,310         432,320 

Restricted Net Position      9,051,108      9,576,937                  -            -       9,051,108      9,576,937 
Unrestricted     (303,195)    (41,731)      270,915        256,869        (32,280)         215,138 

Total Net Position   9,153,224    9,967,526 270,915 256,869 9,424,139   10,224,395
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 

The largest portion of the Association’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions 
on how they may be used.  42% of the restricted net position, or $3,795,368, belongs to the Regional 
Transportation Impact Fee fund.  Capital assets (e.g. land, improvements and equipment) reflect 4% of the net 
assets.  The remaining represents unrestricted net assets.   
 
There was an increase of $14,046 in the net position of the business-type activities.  This increase is a result of 
operating revenue exceeding operating expenditures. 
 

Merced County Association of Governments 
Primary Government and Component Unit - Statement of Activities 

 

  Primary Government 
Business-Type/ 
Component Unit Total 

  2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Program Revenues:            

Federal Operating Revenue   410,341       669,455            -           -     410,341       669,455 

State and Local Operating 
Revenue 

  
14,448,419  

  
15,110,971               -               -   14,448,419    15,110,971 

Charges for Services 3,267,770    2,937,152  22,738 17,535 3,290,508  2,954,687 

General Revenues:            

Interest and Investment 
Earnings        62,060         57,673        252       (26)        62,312         57,647 
              

Total Revenues 18,188,590  18,775,251   22,990   17,509 18,211,580  18,792,760 

             

Program Expenditures:            

General Administration   3,167,320    2,997,917     8,945     9,160   3,176,265    3,007,077 

Transportation Planning   2,686,375    2,470,481            -              -   2,686,375    2,470,481 

Other Planning    1,259,402    1,092,279            -              -   1,259,402    1,092,279 

Transfers to Other Local 
Agencies 

  
11,889,794  

  
10,031,744               -          -   11,889,794    10,031,744 

            

Total Expenditures 19,002,891  16,592,421     8,945     9,160 19,011,836  16,601,581 

             

Change in Net Position   (814,301)   2,182,830   14,045     8,349   (800,256)   2,191,179 

Net Position-Beginning   9,967,526    6,887,475 256,869 248,520 10,224,395    7,135,995 

Prior Period Adjustment                -       897,221           -            -                 -       897,221 

Net Position-Ending  9,153,224    9,967,526 270,915 256,869   9,424,139  10,224,395 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
Government Activities – Primary Government activities decreased by $814,302, during this fiscal year.  This 
net result is mainly due to a decrease of $585,151 in the Local Transportation Fund, a decrease of $389,003 in 
the State Transit Assistance Fund, and a decrease of $231,079 in the Association’s General Fund.  
 
As shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –Governmental Funds, 
total revenues for Governmental Funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 is $18,188,589.  This is a 
decrease of $618,802 or 3.29%, from the prior fiscal year.  The major changes were a decrease in the Local 
Transportation fund revenue of $764,071, a decrease in the Regional Transportation Impact Fee Fund revenue 
of $206,663, an increase in the General Fund revenue of $451,958, and a decrease in the State Transit 
Assistance Fund revenue of $166,528.  
 
Also shown on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –Governmental 
Funds, total expenditures in Governmental Funds for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 are $18,945,496.  
This is an increase of $2,387,086 from the previous fiscal year.  The major changes in expenditures were an 
increase in General Fund expenditures of $432,180, an increase in State Transit Assistance Fund expenditures 
of $606,156, an increase in the Regional Transportation Impact Fee Fund expenditures of $538,527 and an 
increase of $808,000 in the  Local Transportation Fund. 
 
Revenue sources include charges for services, allocations from state and federal sources, local jurisdictions and 
interest income. 
 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
As noted earlier, MCAG uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds – The focus of MCAG’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows 
and outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing MCAG’s financing 
requirements.  In particular, the unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The Association’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance at June 30, 2015 of $8,929,765, a net 
decrease of $756,907.  This net decrease was a result of decreases in the General Fund, Local Transportation 
Fund, and the State Transit Assistance Fund, which were offset somewhat by increases in the Regional 
Transportation Impact Fee Fund and the Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies.    
 
The General Fund is the operating fund of the Association.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the fund 
balance of the General Fund was $389,610.  Of that amount, $394,066 is restricted to Highways and Streets 
and ($4,456) is unreserved and unassigned.  As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to 
compare unreserved fund balance to total expenditures.   
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Continued) 
 
The General Fund net change in fund balance decreased $231,079 during the fiscal year.  The majority of this 
decrease was a result in the Indirect Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) rate not being approved by Caltrans for billing 
purposes for State and Federal reimbursements.  The amount will be carried forward to a future year.     
 
Other changes in fund balances include the following: 
 
Regional Transportation Impact Fee: 

 This major fund increased by $226,850 due to revenues exceeding expenditures.  Expenditures 
increased due to funds allocated and spent for the Atwater-Merced Expressway project.   
 

Local Transportation Fund: 
 This major fund decreased by $585,151, as a result of actual revenues received were less than 

budgeted.   
 
Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies: 
 This major fund increased $215,073 as a result of fees collected from DMV exceeding expenditures for 

services. 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
During the fiscal year, the Board of Directors approved budget amendments for revisions for supplemental 
appropriations and related revenue.  The difference between the General Fund original budgeted appropriations 
and the final budget was an increase of $78,000.  $75,000 was for additional staff for the Yosemite Area 
Regional Transportation System.  
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Capital Assets – The Association’s investment in capital assets for both governmental and business-type 
activities as of June 30, 2015, amounted to $453,417.  This investment in capital includes land, buildings and 
improvements, and furniture and equipment.  Additional information on the Association’s capital assets can be 
found in Note 5 – Capital Assets. 
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Capital Assets 
 

  
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-Type 

Activities Total 
  2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Non-depreciable Assets:             

 Land      75,000      75,000          -          -      75,000       75,000 

Total non-depreciable assets      75,000      75,000          -          -      75,000       75,000 
             
Depreciable Assets:            
 Buildings and improvements    575,559    575,559          -          -    575,559     575,559 

 Furniture and equipment    608,303    608,303 71,232 71,232   679,535     679,535 

Total depreciable assets 1,183,862 1,183,862 71,232 71,232 1,255,094  1,255,094 
             
Accumulated depreciation:            

 Buildings and improvements    239,820    224,307          -          -    239,820     224,307 

 Furniture and equipment    565,626    530,284 71,232 71,232    636,858     601,516 

Total accumulated depr    805,446    754,591 71,232 71,232    876,678     825,823 

Total net depreciable assets    378,416    429,271          -          -    378,416     429,271 

Total capital assets    453,416    504,271          -         -    453,416     504,271 

 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
Long-term debt – At the end of the fiscal year, the Association had $48,107 in long-term debt, which consisted 
of loans for solar panels and copier leases.   

 
Outstanding Debt June 30, 2015 

 

  

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Total 

 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Loan payable-Solar Panels 21,967  30,170 - -     21,967     30,170 

Capital Lease Copiers (B/W)      2,075       5,160 -   -           2,075        5,160 

Capital Lease Copiers (Color)    24,065     36,621 -   -         24,065      36,621 

Total long-term debt 48,107  71,951 - -     48,107      71,951 

 
 
During the fiscal year, the Association’s total debt decreased by $23,844.  This was the result of payments 
made on the debt.  Additional information on the Association’s debt can be found in Note 6-Long-Term 
Liabilities. 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 
 

 Merced County’s unemployment rate dropped by two percent (2%) from the prior year.  As of 
September 2015, the Bureau of Labor Statistics reports the unemployment rates were 8.2% for Merced, 
5.9% for California and 5.1% for the Nation.  Most of the jurisdictions have indicated that they have had 
some increase in building permits issued.  The recent minimum wage increase had little direct effect on 
MCAG staff costs. 

 
 For the 2015-16 fiscal year, the Merced County Auditor/Controller has allocated some of the Local 

Transportation Fund reserves for distribution through MCAG.  This will lower the reserve amount an 
estimated one million dollars. 
 

 MCAG received a two Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Grants, one in the amount of $125,000 to 
prepare an updated Short-Range Transit Plan identifying needs, service improvements, and a financial 
plan.  This project will begin in the 2015-16 fiscal year and carry over into the 2016-17 fiscal year.  The 
second grant is for $500,000.  The purpose of this grant is to develop a pilot program framework for 
innovative and alternative approaches to address transit needs in the rural San Joaquin Valley.  The 
framework will be performed over two years. 
 

 In the 2015-2016 Fiscal Year Budget, salary & benefits reflect a cost of living adjustment of three 
percent, and the additional administration services provided for the Transit Joint Powers Authority for 
Merced County, the Merced County Regional Waste Management Authority and the Yosemite Area 
Regional Transportation System.   
 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designated to provide a general overview of the Association’s finances.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be 
addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, Merced County Association of Governments, 369 West 18th Street, 
Merced, CA 95340. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 10,814,341$    59,893$           10,874,234$    
Accounts receivable 17,156             319                  17,475             
Prepaids 2,228               -                       2,228               
Internal balances (212,611)          212,611           -                       
Due from other governments 1,534,520      -                      1,534,520        

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 75,000             -                       75,000             
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 378,417           -                       378,417           

Total assets 12,609,051      272,823           12,881,874      

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 98,651             1,908               100,559           
Accrued payroll and related items 103,037         -                      103,037          
Accrued interest 514                  -                       514                  
Due to other local agencies 3,024,182        -                       3,024,182        
Due within one year:

Loan payable 8,529             -                      8,529              
Compensated absences 181,336           -                       181,336           
Capital leases 14,631             -                       14,631             

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due in more than one year:

Loan payable 13,438             -                       13,438             
Capital lease 11,509             -                       11,509             

Total liabilities 3,455,827        1,908               3,457,735        

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 405,310           -                       405,310           
Restricted for:

Highways and streets 6,867,156      -                      6,867,156        
Other 2,067,064      -                      2,067,064        

Unrestricted (186,305)        270,915           84,610             

Total net position 9,153,224$      270,915$         9,424,139$      

Primary Government
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Charges Federal State and Local
for Operating Operating Governmental Business-Type

Expenses Services Revenues Revenues Activities Activities Total

Primary government:
Governmental activities:

General administration 3,167,320$         3,186,683$         -$                        336,869$            356,232$            -$                        356,232$            
Transportation planning 2,686,375           -                          410,341              4,173,113           1,897,079           -                          1,897,079           
Other planning 1,259,402           81,087                -                          65,000                (1,113,315)          -                          (1,113,315)          

Transfers to other local agencies 11,889,794         -                          -                          9,873,437           (2,016,357)          -                          (2,016,357)          

Total primary government -
  governmental activities 19,002,891         3,267,770           410,341              14,448,419         (876,361)             -                          (876,361)             

Business-type activities:
Merced Data Special Services, Inc. 8,945                  22,738                -                          -                          -                          13,793                13,793                

Total activities 19,011,836$       3,290,508$         410,341$            14,448,419$       (876,361)             13,793                (862,568)             

Interest and investment earnings 62,059                252                     62,311                

Total general revenues                                                           62,059                252                     62,311                

Change in net position                                                            (814,302)             14,045                (800,257)             

Net position - beginning                                                          9,967,526           256,870              10,224,396         

Net position - ending                                                              9,153,224$         270,915$            9,424,139$         

General Revenues:

Functions/Programs

Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government
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14 

 

MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Service
Regional Authority

Transportation Local State State Transit for Freeway Nonmajor Total
General Impact Fee Transportation Exchange Assistance Emergencies Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 63,173$            3,591,488$       2,485,312$       2,689,510$       86,355$            1,889,174$       9,328$              10,814,341$     
Receivables:

Accounts receivable -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       17,156              -                       17,156              
Due from other governments 921,020            203,880            -                       -                       356,040            377                   53,203              1,534,520         
Due from other funds 580                   -                       -                       -                       -                       157,210            -                       157,790            

Prepaid expenses 2,228                -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,228                

Total assets 987,001$          3,795,368$       2,485,312$       2,689,510$       442,395$          2,063,917$       62,531$            12,526,035$     

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable 93,050$            -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     5,282$              -$                     98,332$            
Accrued liabilities 103,037            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       103,037            
Due to other funds 369,265            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       580                   369,845            
Due to other local agencies 31,483              -                       -                       2,583,456         356,039            319                   53,203              3,024,500         

Advance from component unit 556                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       556                   

Total liabilities 597,391            -                       -                       2,583,456         356,039            5,601                53,783              3,596,270         

Fund balances:
Restricted for:

Highways and streets 394,066            3,795,368         2,485,312         106,054            86,356              -                       -                       6,867,156         
Other -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,058,316         8,748                2,067,064         

Unassigned (4,456)              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       (4,456)              

Total fund balances 389,610            3,795,368         2,485,312         106,054            86,356              2,058,316         8,748                8,929,764         

Total liabilities and fund balances 987,001$          3,795,368$       2,485,312$       2,689,510$       442,395$          2,063,917$       62,531$            12,526,034$     
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

  Total fund balances - governmental funds 8,929,764$      

Capital assets:  In governmental funds, only current assets are 
reported.  In the statement of net position, all assets are 
reported, including capital assets and accumulated 
depreciation.

Capital assets at historic cost 1,258,862      
Accumulated depreciation (805,446)         

453,416           
Unmatured interest on long-term debt:  In governmental funds, 
interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period in 
which it matures and is paid.  In the government-wide 
statement of activities, long-term debt is recognized in the 
period that it is incurred. (514)                

Long-term liabilities:  In government funds, only current 
liabilities are reported.  In the statement of net position, all 
liabilities, including long-term liabilities are reported.  Long-term 
liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Compensated absences payable (181,336)         
Capital lease payable (26,140)         
Loan payable (21,967)           

(229,443)         

9,153,224$      

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

  Net position of governmental activities  
 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Service
Regional Authority

Transportation Local State State Transit for Freeway Nonmajor Total
General Impact Fee Transportation Exchange Assistance Emergencies Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES
Sales taxes 194,300$         -$                     -$                     -$                     1,355,360$      -$                     -$                     1,549,660$       
Local transportation fund -                       -                       6,504,645         -                       -                       -                       -                       6,504,645         
Charges for services -                       785,336            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       785,336            
State and local revenues 5,868,082        -                       -                       2,583,456        -                       220,208            204,669            8,876,415         
Federal revenues 410,341           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       410,341            
Investment earnings 959                  18,557              26,204              944                  2,754               12,640              -                       62,059              

Other income 133                  -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       133                   

Total revenues 6,473,815        803,893            6,530,849         2,584,400        1,358,114        232,848            204,669            18,188,589       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
Salaries and benefits 3,913,921        -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       3,913,921         
Supplies and services 470,568           443,220            -                       -                       -                       17,775              199,213            1,130,776         
Contributions to other local agencies -                       -                       7,116,000         2,583,454        1,747,117        -                       -                       11,446,571       

Highways and streets 2,295,420        133,823            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       2,429,243         
Debt service:

Principal 23,873             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       23,873              
Interest 1,112               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,112                

Total expenditures 6,704,894        577,043            7,116,000         2,583,454        1,747,117        17,775              199,213            18,945,496       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
 over (under) expenditures (231,079)          226,850            (585,151)          946                  (389,003)          215,073            5,456                (756,908)          

Net change in fund balances (231,079)          226,850            (585,151)          946                  (389,003)          215,073            5,456                (756,908)          

Fund balances - beginning 620,689           3,568,518         3,070,463         105,108           475,359           1,843,243         3,292                9,686,672         

Fund balances - ending 389,610$         3,795,368$       2,485,312$       106,054$         86,356$           2,058,316$       8,748$              8,929,764$       
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (756,908)$         

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the 
government-wide statement of activities, but does not require the 
use of current financial resources; therefore, depreciation 
expense is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental 
funds. (50,853)             

Repayment of long-term principal is an expenditure in 
governmental funds, but the repayment reduced long-term 
liabilities in the government-wide statement of net position. 23,844              

Compensated absences expense reported in the statement of 
activities does not require the use of current financial resources; 
therefore, it is not reported as an expenditure in the governmental 
funds. (30,545)             

Unmatured interest on long-term debt.  In governmental funds, 
interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period that it is 
incurred. 159                   

Change in net position of government activities (814,302)$         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Enterprise
Fund

MDSS, Inc.

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 59,893$             
Accounts receivable 319                    
Due from primary government 212,055             

Total current assets 272,267             

Noncurrent assets:
Advance to primary government 556                    
Capital assets:

Geographic information database 51,490               
Yosemite.com website 19,742               
Accumulated depreciation (71,232)              

Total capital assets -                         

Total assets 272,823             

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 1,908                 

Total liabilities 1,908                 

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 270,915             

Total net position 270,915$           
 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
19 

MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Enterprise
Fund

MDSS, Inc.

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 22,739$             

Total operating revenues 22,739               

OPERATING EXPENSES
General administration 8,945                 

Total operating expenses 8,945                 

Operating income (loss) 13,794               

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 252                    

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 252                    

Change in net position 14,046               

Total net position - beginning 256,869             

Total net position - ending 270,915$           
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Enterprise
Fund

MDSS, Inc.

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers 23,204$             
Payments to primary government (213,744)            
Payments to suppliers and service providers (8,943)                

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (199,483)            

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest income 252                    

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 252                    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (199,231)            

Cash balances - beginning of year 259,124             

Cash balances - end of year 59,893$             

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
 provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 13,794$             
Increase (decrease) in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable 466                    
Accounts payable (213,743)            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (199,483)$          
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
General Statement 
 
In 1967, the Merced County Association of Governments (the Association) was created through a Joint 
Powers Agreement adopted by the cities and the County of Merced.  This agreement has been subsequently 
renewed, most recently in 2007, for a term of ten years. 
 
On July 20, 1972, the Merced County Association of Governments was designated as the Regional 
Transportation Planning Agency for the County of Merced by the Secretary of Business and Transportation 
Agency of the State of California.  The Association and the State of California Department of Transportation 
(CALTRANS) have formally agreed to a continuous transportation planning process by mutually executing a 
Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
The Association’s governing board is comprised of the five supervisors of the County of Merced and one 
representative from the cities of Merced, Atwater, Livingston, Dos Palos, Gustine, and Los Banos.  The 
governing board exercises extensive control over the activities of the Association.  These controls take the 
form of approvals, review of progress reports from the Association’s staff, decision-making, and general 
administration. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity 
 
The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes criteria for determining which 
organizations should be included in a governmental reporting entity.  The focal point for preparing financial 
statements of a financial reporting entity is the primary government. 
 
The identification of a financial reporting entity is built around the concept of financial accountability.  That is, 
if a primary government is financially accountable for another entity, that entity’s financial statements must be 
included in the financial statements of the reporting entity.  Thus, the financial reporting entity consists of the 
primary government and its component units. 
 
Primary government is defined as a state, general purpose local or special purpose local government that 
has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of the other state or 
local governments. 
 
Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable.  In addition, a component unit can be another organization for which 
the nature and significance of its relationship with a primary government is such that the exclusion would 
cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  Merced Data Special 
Services, Inc. (MDSS) is a nonprofit corporation organized to provide special planning services and products 
to governmental agencies and other organizations.  The MDSS governing body is identical to the 
Association.  MDSS utilizes the employees of the Association. 
 
Based on these criteria and definitions, the Association is the primary government and MDSS is reported as 
a blended component unit.  MDSS is presented as an enterprise fund type within the accompanying financial 
statements of the Association.  
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The Association’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement 
of net position and a statement of activities and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed 
level of financial information. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis – GASB Statement No. 34 requires the financial statements be 
accompanied by a narrative introduction and analytical overview of the Association’s financial activities in the 
form of “management discussion and analysis” (MD&A).  This analysis is similar to the analysis provided in 
the annual reports of private sector organizations. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements:  The statement of net position and the statement of activities report 
information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Association and its component units.  The government-
wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  This is the same 
approach used in the preparation of the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements but differs 
from the manner in which governmental fund financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund financial 
statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship 
between the government-wide statements and the statements for the governmental funds.  For the most 
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on charges and fees for support. 
 
Statement of Activities:  The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the program expenses 
of a given function are offset by program revenues.  Program expenses include direct expenses which are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function and allocated indirect expenses.  Program revenues include:  
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from services provided by a 
given function; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function.  Taxes and other items, which are properly not included among 
program revenues, are reported instead as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements:  The fund financial statements provide information about the Association’s funds, 
including its fiduciary funds, though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.  
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in 
a separate column.  All the remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as 
nonmajor funds.  Separate statements for each fund category – governmental and proprietary – are 
presented. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values.  Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment 
earnings, result from non-exchange transaction or ancillary activities. 
 
Major Governmental Funds: 
 
 General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Association.  It is used to account 

for the financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

 Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally 
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.  The Association maintains five major special revenue 
funds: 

 Regional Transportation Impact Fee Fund – The Regional Transportation Impact Fee (RTIF) 
fund was organized in January 2005.  The RTIF fund was established to provide a means to 
access and collect fees on new development throughout Merced County.  The funds will be used 
to help collect $91 million of the expected $530 million necessary to maintain traffic at an 
acceptable level of service on the regional road system throughout the County through the year 
2030. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Major Governmental Funds: (Continued) 

 
 Local Transportation Fund – The Local Transportation Fund accounts for revenues received and 

expenditures made for use on certain transportation and transit projects within Merced County.  
Financing is generated from a one-quarter percent state sales and use tax made pursuant to the 
California Transportation Development Act (TDA).  Expenditures of these moneys must be made 
in accordance with TDA provisions. 

 
 State Exchange Fund – The State Exchange Fund is used to account for the exchange of 

federal regional surface transportation program funds for nonfederal and state highway funds, 
and for the apportionment and disbursement of such funds to participating cities and Merced 
County in accordance with the approved claims. 

 
 State Transit Assistance Fund – The State Transit Assistance Fund is used to account for public 

transportation monies derived from statewide sales taxes, and for the apportionment and 
disbursement of such funds to participating cities and Merced County according to approved 
claims. 

 
 Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies Fund – The Service Authority for Freeway 

Emergencies fund was organized in January 1995.  The revenue to complete and maintain the 
system is derived from the $1.00 per year, per vehicle registered in Merced County.  The system 
is envisioned to consist of 130 call boxes installed on Interstate 5 and State Routes 99 and 152. 

 
Major Enterprise Fund: 
 
The Association reports the following major enterprise fund: 
 
 Merced Data Special Services, Inc. – MDSS provides special planning services and products to 

governmental agencies and other organizations primarily within Central California.  In addition, MDSS 
operates the www.yosemite.com website, which provides accurate, real-time information about Yosemite 
National Park and the surrounding region. 

 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds: 
 
The Association maintains one nonmajor special revenue fund: 
 
 Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Fund – The Abandoned Vehicle Abatement Fund is used to account for 

fees placed on every vehicle registered in Merced County.  Participating jurisdictions are able to use 
those fees for vehicle abatement according to vehicle codes. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:  The government-wide, proprietary 
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and 
available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the Association considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 180 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred; however, principal and interest expenditures 
on long-term debt and compensated absences of government funds are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:  Governmental funds are reported using the current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified basis of accounting.  Under this method, revenues are 
recognized when measurable and available.  The Association considers all revenues reported in the 
governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected 90 days after year-end.  Sales taxes, state 
and local revenues, federal revenues, and interest are considered to be susceptible to accrual.  Expenditures 
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term 
debt, claims and judgments, as well as compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the 
extent they have matured.  General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds.  Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 
 
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally 
are found in both the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB).  The Association has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance for its business-type 
activities and enterprise funds. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a proprietary fund’s 
principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the Association’s proprietary fund are 
charges to customers for services.  Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of services, 
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this 
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
The major sources of revenue are federal operating revenue, state and local operating revenue, charges for 
services, investment earnings, and in-kind contributed services as described below: 
 
1) Federal Operating Revenue 

 
Federal operating revenue is recognized when program expenditures are incurred in accordance with 
program guidelines.  Such revenue is subject to review by the funding agency and may result in 
disallowance in subsequent periods.  The funds are expended for transportation planning purposes. 
 

2) State and Local Operating Revenue 
 
State and local operating revenue takes the form of appropriations for transportation and other planning 
purposes.  The amounts are earned when program expenditures are incurred. 
 

3) Charges for Services 
 
The Association provides various services to the County of Merced and the cities within the County.  The 
local agencies contract with the Association for these services.  Revenue is received on a 
reimbursement basis. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued) 

 
4) Investment Earnings 

 
Interest revenues are recognized when they are measurable and available from the County of Merced 
Treasurer’s Office. 
 

5) In-Kind – Contributed Services 
 
Local contributions, which include services provided by local governments, are used to match federal 
and state administered funding in various grants.  Contributed services are recorded as revenue and 
expenditures in the individual grants.  The amounts of each of these services are recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements at their estimated fair market values at the date of service. 

 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Association’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand and short-term investments 
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.  Cash of all funds, excluding the 
component unit, is pooled in the treasury of Merced County.  The County pools these funds with those of 
other entities of the County and invests the cash.  These pooled funds are carried at cost, which 
approximates market value.  Interest earned is deposited quarterly in the participating funds.  Any investment 
losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool.  The County is authorized to deposit cash and 
invest excess funds by California Government Code Sections 53601 et. seq., 53635 et. seq., and 53648 et. 
seq. 
 
Merced Data Special Services, Inc. (MDSS), the component unit, holds its cash in a commercial bank 
checking account.  Cash balances held in banks are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Depository 
Insurance Corporation.  All cash held by the financial institutions is fully insured. 
 
Restricted Net Position 
 
Restricted net position represents monies or other resources, the use of which is restricted by legal or 
contractual requirements.  Restricted cash is considered a cash equivalent for cash flow reporting purposes. 
 
Interfund Transactions 
 
During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds involving goods 
provided or services rendered.  There are also transfers of revenues from funds authorized to receive the 
revenue to funds authorized to expend it.  Outstanding interfund balances, including internal financing 
balances, are reported as due to/from other funds.  As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity is 
eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are charges 
between the Association and the various transportation and service-related programs.  Elimination of these 
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various programs concerned. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable, including those for MDSS, result from charges for services.  The “direct write-off” 
method for accounts receivable was applied for accounts that have been established as uncollectible.  The 
“direct write-off” method is not in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles, but the result 
was deemed immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole.  Neither the Association nor MDSS 
wrote off any accounts receivable during the fiscal year.  There were no accounts that were deemed to be 
uncollectible at June 30, 2015. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets which include: land, building and improvements, equipment, furniture, vehicles, database and 
website, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the Association as assets with 
an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and a useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are 
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not 
capitalized. 
 
Buildings, equipment, furniture, vehicles, database and website are depreciated over the straight-line method 
over the following useful lives: 
 

Asset Type Useful Life 
 
Buildings and improvements 20 to 50 years 
Equipment and furniture 3 to 10 years 
Vehicles 7 years 
Database 20 years 
Website 3 years 
 

Payables 
 
Certain costs are incurred by the Association during the current period but are not paid until after the 
beginning of next fiscal period.  These costs are reported as payables in the financial statements.  The 
Association’s current accounts payable balance of $100,559, as of June 30, 2015, is related to certain 
contract services and payments for utility fees. 
 
Unearned Revenue/Unavailable Revenues 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, unearned revenue is recognized for transactions for which 
revenue has not yet been earned. 
 
In the fund financial statements, unearned revenue is recorded when transactions have not yet met the 
revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrued basis of accounting.  The Association records 
unearned revenue for transactions for which revenues have not been earned and records unavailable 
revenues when funds are not available to meet current financial obligations.   
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Full-time employees are eligible for leave.  During the first 3 years of employment, a full-time employee 
accrues 10 days of vacation per year.  During the next 6 years of employment, an employee accrues 15 days 
of vacation leave per year.  After 9 years of employment, an employee accrues 20 days of vacation per year.  
Full-time employees may accrue a maximum of two times their annual vacation accrual.  Employees may not 
receive payment for unused vacation hours except when employment is terminated.  The liability recorded 
for compensated absences as of June 30, 2015 is $181,336. 
 
Regular full-time employees accrue 12 sick days per year.  Salaried part-time employees working a minimum 
of 20 hours per week accrue sick leave in proportion to the regular work schedule.  Accrual of sick leave is 
unlimited.  Employees are not paid for unused sick days upon termination of employment. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position is reported in three categories as follows: 
 

 Net investment in capital assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of 
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the 
acquisition. 
 

 Restricted – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws 
or regulations of other governments. 
 

 Unrestricted – This amount is all resources that do not meet the definition of “net 
investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.” 

 
Indirect Costs 
 
The negotiated Indirect Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) rate is adjusted to reflect the actual indirect costs 
incurred by the Association on a revolving two-year basis.  For the fiscal year 2014-2015 the Association’s 
ICAP rate has not been negotiated for billing and reimbursement purposes.  This rate is subject to audit at a 
future date. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions the affect the reported 
amounts of certain assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the 
reporting period.  As such, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Net Position 
 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are 
available, the Association’s policy is to apply restricted net position first. 
 
Fund Balance Classification 
 
The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a 
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the Association is bound to honor constraints on the 
specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent.  The classifications 
used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows: 
 

 Nonspendable – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 
(a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  The 
Association has no nonspendable fund balances. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Fund Balance Classification (Continued) 
 

 Restricted – This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use 
of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

 Committed – This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Governing Board.  These amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the Governing Board removes or changes the specific use by 
taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were 
initially committed.  This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing 
resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.   
 

 Assigned – This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Association’s intent to be 
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  This intent can be expressed by 
the Governing Board or through the Governing Board delegating the responsibility to the Executive 
Director through the budgetary process.  This classification also includes the remaining positive fund 
balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund. 
 

 Unassigned – This classification includes any negative residual amounts that may exist as a result of 
expenditures incurred for specific purposes in excess of amounts restricted, committed, or assigned 
to those purposes. 

 
Pronouncements 
 

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 

In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions—an 
amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.  The primary objective of this statement is to improve 
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions.  It also improves 
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions that 
is provided by other entities.  This statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of 
existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-
useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating 
additional transparency.  This statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for 
Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, 
Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension plans administered as 
trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria.  The 
requirements of Statements 27 and 50 remain applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope 
of this Statement.  The requirements of this Statement were implemented for the Association’s fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2015.  As of July 1, 2014, the Association adopted this standard, which did not have a 
significant impact on its financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Pronouncements (Continued) 
 

New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted (Continued) 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 69 
 
In January 2013, the GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of 
Government Operations.  The objective of this statement is to establish accounting and financial 
reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations.  The 
statement requires disclosure to be made about government combinations and disposals of government 
operations to enable financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those 
transactions.  The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority’s fiscal year ending June 
30, 2015.  As of July 1, 2014, the Association adopted this standard, which did not have an impact on its 
financial statements. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71 
 
In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made 
Subsequent to the Measurement Date—An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.  The objective of 
this statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement 
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.  The issue relates to amounts associated with 
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to 
a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension 
liability.  The requirements of this statement are effective for the Association’s fiscal year ending June 30, 
2017.  As of July 1, 2014, the Association adopted this standard, which did not have an impact on its 
financial statements. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72 
 
In February 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application.  This 
statement addresses accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements.  This 
statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes 
and also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related to all 
fair value measurements.  The requirements for this provision are effective for the Association’s fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2015.  As of July 1, 2014, the Association adopted this standard, which did not 
have an impact on its financial statements. 
 
New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 73 
 
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68 and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.  The objective of this statement is to improve the usefulness 
of information about pensions included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local 
governments for making decisions and accessing accountability.  This statement results from 
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for 
all postemployment benefits with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for the Association’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  
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NOTE 1 – GENERAL STATEMENT AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Pronouncements (Continued) 

 
New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted (Continued) 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 73 
 
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and 
Related Assets That Are Not Within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68 and Amendments to Certain 
Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.  The objective of this statement is to improve the usefulness 
of information about pensions included in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local 
governments for making decisions and accessing accountability.  This statement results from 
comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for 
all postemployment benefits with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting 
assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for the Association’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018.  
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74 
 
On June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans 
Other Than Pension Plans.  The objective of this statement is to improve the usefulness of information 
about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB) included 
in the general purpose external financial reports of state and local governmental OPEB plans for making 
decisions and assessing accountability.  This statement replaces Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting 
for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB 
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans.  It also includes requirements 
for defined contribution OPEB plans that replace the requirements for those OPEB plans in Statement 
No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined 
Contribution Plans, as amended, Statement No. 43, and Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for the Association’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75 
 
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions.  The primary objective of this statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions 
(other postemployment benefits or OPEB).  It also improves information provided by state and local 
governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.  This 
statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, and No. 57, OPEB 
Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.  The requirements of 
this statement are effective for the Association’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 76 
 
In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles for State and Local Governments.  The objective of this statement is to identify – in the context 
of the current governmental financial reporting environment – the hierarchy of generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP).  The “GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles 
used to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP 
and the framework for selecting those principles.  This statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two 
categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in 
the event that the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified within a source of 
authoritative GAAP.  This statement supersedes Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments.  The requirements for this statement are 
effective for the Association’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.  
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash in Banks 
 
The Association pools cash resources from all governmental funds, as well as other governmental entities, in 
order to facilitate the management of cash and achieve the goal of obtaining the highest yield with the 
greatest safety and least risk.  The balance in the pooled cash account is available to meet current operating 
requirements.  Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in various interest-bearing accounts and 
other investments for varying terms.  The Association has a collateralized agreement with Wells Fargo Bank 
that all government funds deposited are subject to Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2 
(commencing with Section 53630) of the Government Code of the State of California (the "Local Agency 
Deposit Security Law"). 
 
Cash and cash equivalents held in the proprietary fund consist only of cash held in financial banking 
institutions.  Cash balances in banks are insured up to $250,000, per financial institution, by the Federal 
Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  Custodial credit risk is that in the event of a bank failure, the 
fund’s deposits will not be returned to it. 
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 
Cash and cash equivalents in the governmental funds consist of cash in the Merced County Treasury as part 
of the common investment pool.  These pooled funds are carried at cost, which approximates market value.  
Interest is paid quarterly into the participating funds.  Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all 
funds in the pool.  The fair market value of this pool, as of June 30, 2015, was provided by the pool sponsor. 
 
The County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by the California Government Code 
Sections 53601 et. seq., 53635 et. seq., and 53648 et. seq.  The County is restricted by California 
Government Code Section 53635, pursuant to Section 53601, to invest in time deposits, U.S. government 
securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s investment pool, bankers’ 
acceptances commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse repurchase 
agreements.  The investment policy for the Merced County Treasury prohibits reverse repurchase 
agreements and investments in foreign investments. 
 
Cash and investments are comprised of the following at June 30, 2015: 
 

Cost FMV
DEPOSITS
Unrestricted cash and investments:
Governmental funds - cash in County Treasury 63,385$         63,173$         
Proprietary funds - cash in banks 59,893           59,893           
Special Revenue funds - cash in County Treasury 6,470,730      6,449,089      
Governmental funds - cash in banks 4,302,079      4,302,079      

Total cash and investments 10,896,087$  10,874,234$  
 

 
Investments in investment pools are considered unclassified as to credit risk because they are not evidenced 
by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.  Investments in investment pools and other pooled 
investments are excluded from the concentration of credit risk disclosure under GASB Statement No. 40. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Cash in County Treasury (Continued) 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rate.  As of June 30, 2015, the weighted average maturity of the investments 
contained in the County Treasury investment pool was approximately 552 days. 
 
Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use 
of mutual funds or government investment pools.  The County of Merced issues a financial report that 
includes custodial risk disclosures for the Cash in County Treasury.  The report may be obtained by writing 
the Merced County Treasurer, 2222 M Street, Merced, California 95340. 
 

NOTE 3 – INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 
 
The composition of internal balances at June 30, 2015 is as follows: 
 

Due From Due To Explanation

General Fund 580$             157,210$      Staff services, PPA
Service Authority for Freeway Emergencies Fund 157,210       -                   PPA
Abandoned Vehicle Abatement -                     580                Staff services

157,790$       157,790$       

 

The composition of due from and to between the primary government and component unit at June 30, 
2015 is as follows: 
 

Due From Due To Explanation

General Fund -$                   556$              Vehicle purchase
General Fund -                     212,055         Operational
Merced Data Special Services, Inc. 556                -                     Vehicle purchase
Merced Data Special Services, Inc. 212,055         -                     Operational

212,611$       212,611$       
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NOTE 4 – DUE TO/FROM OTHER LOCAL AGENCIES AND GOVERNMENTS 
 
Amounts due to/from other local agencies and governments as of June 30, 2015 are as follows: 
 
Other Governments

Receivable Fund Payable From Amount Explanation

General Fund Other Government 921,020$          Local
Regional Transportation Impact Fee Other Government 203,880            Local
State Transit Assistance Fund State of California 377                   SAFE Allocation

Service Authority for Freeway
  Emergencies State of California 356,040            STA Allocation

Nonmajor fund State of California 53,203              AVA Fees

Total 1,534,520$       

Other Local Agencies

Payable Fund Payable To Amount Explanation

General Fund Various local agencies 31,482$            Various services
State Exchange Fund City of Atwater 304,164            RSTP Disbursement
State Exchange Fund City of Dos Palos 53,179              RSTP Disbursement
State Exchange Fund City of Gustine 59,209              RSTP Disbursement
State Exchange Fund City of Livingston 143,283            RSTP Disbursement
State Exchange Fund City of Los Banos 385,190            RSTP Disbursement
State Exchange Fund City of Merced 852,894            RSTP Disbursement
State Exchange Fund County of Merced 785,537            RSTP Disbursement
Service Authority for Freeway
  Emergencies

California Highway Patrol 319                   Call box

State Transit Assistance Fund Transit Joint Powers Authority 356,040            STA 4TH Qtr Distribution

Nonmajor fund Various local governments, agencies 53,203            AVA Disbursements

Total 3,024,500$       
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NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 
 

Balances Balances
July 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015

Government activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 75,000$        -$                -$                75,000$        

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 575,559      -                -                 575,559       

Furniture and equipment 608,303      -                -                 608,303       

Total assets being depreciated 1,183,862     -                  -                  1,183,862     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (224,308)       (15,511)       -                  (239,819)       

Furniture and equipment (530,284)       (35,342)       -                  (565,626)       

Total accumulated depreciation (754,592)       (50,853)       -                  (805,445)       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 429,270      (50,853)     -                 378,417       

Governmental activities capital assets, net 504,270$     (50,853)$    -$                453,417$     

Business-type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:

GIS system 51,490$        -$                -$                51,490$        
Yosemite.com website 19,742          -                  -                  19,742          

Total assets being depreciated 71,232          -                  -                  71,232          

Less accumulated depreciation for:
GIS system (51,490)         -                  -                  (51,490)         
Yosemite.com website (19,742)         -                  -                  (19,742)         

Total accumulated depreciation (71,232)         -                  -                  (71,232)         

Business-type activities capital assets, net -$                 -$               -$                -$                 

 

Depreciation expense of $50,853 was charged to general administration in the statement of activities. 
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NOTE 6 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term liabilities are comprised of the following at June 30, 2015: 
 

Due Within Due in More
One Year Than One Year Total

Loan Payable and Capital Leases

8,529$            13,438$          21,967$          

12,555            11,510            24,065            

2,075              -                      2,075              

Total long-term liabilities 23,159$          24,948$          48,107$          

On March 29, 2004, the Association obtained 
financing in the amount of $93,210 at 3.95% to 
construct a solar panel project.  The loan is 
unsecured.

In March 2011, the Association obtained capital 
lease financing in the amount of $15,569 for a 
copier.

In May 2012, the Association obtained capital 
lease financing in the amount of $62,330 for a 
copier.

 
 

Annual debt service to maturity for long-term liabilities is as follows: 
 

Years Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 23,159$          949$               24,108$          
2017 20,381            618                 20,999            
2018 4,567              269                 4,836              

48,107$          1,836$            49,943$          
 

 

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liabilities activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 One Year

Governmental activities:

Loan payable - solar panels 30,170$      -$               (8,203)$      21,967$        8,529$        
Capital lease - copier 5,190          -                 (3,115)        2,075            2,075          
Capital lease - copier 36,620        -                 (12,555)      24,065          12,555        

Total 71,980$      -$               (23,873)$    48,107$        23,159$      
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NOTE 7 – LEASES 
 
Capital Leases 
 
The Association has entered into various leases for equipment with lease terms in excess of one year.  
Some contain purchase options.  Some agreements contain a termination clause providing for cancellation 
after a specified number of days written notice to lessors, but it is unlikely that the Association will cancel any 
such agreements prior to the expiration date.  The Association also leases office equipment under non-
cancellable operating leases.  The Association will receive no sublease rental revenues, nor pay any 
contingent rentals for this equipment. 
 
The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows: 
 
Years Ending June 30

2016 14,630$         
2017 11,510           

Total 26,140$         
 

 
Total lease costs (including usage charges) were $17,707 for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
 
As discussed above, the Association entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisitions 
of office equipment.  These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, 
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the 
inception date. 
 
The assets acquired through capital leases are included in total depreciable assets presented above, and 
are as follows: 
 

Year Ending Governmental
June 30, 2015 Activities

Copier 77,899$            

Total capitalized cost 77,899              
Accumulated depreciation (52,709)             

Total 25,190$             
 
The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments are as 
follows: 
 

Years Ending Governmental
June 30 Activities

2016 14,630$            
2017 11,510              

Total minimum lease payments 26,140              
Less amount representing interest -                        

Present value of minimum lease payments 26,140$             
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NOTE 8 – TRANSACTIONS WITH COMPONENT UNIT 
 
The Association provided professional services in the amount of $2,187 to Merced Data Special Services, 
Inc. for the year ending June 30, 2015. 
 

NOTE 9 – CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 
 
The Association expects to collect receivables from various governmental agencies ranging from federal, 
state, and local governmental sources.  The component unit has various customers ranging from 
governmental entities to private companies.  These customers are located primarily throughout the State of 
California. 
 

NOTE 10 – DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
The Association provides pension benefits for all of its full-time employees through a defined contribution 
plan.  The plan is administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation.  In a defined contribution plan, benefits 
depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings.  Employees are eligible to 
participate in the plan from the date of employment and are 100% vested after 364 days of employment.  
Under the terms of the plan, the employer contributes 15% and 18% of the qualified payroll for all eligible 
employees and the Executive Director, respectively.  The contributions are 100% vested to all employees 
covered by the plan.  As this is an employer only contribution plan, any employee terminating employment 
before being vested will forfeit all contributions.  The employer may use those funds to pay for any future 
contributions.  Any changes to the rates are approved by the Governing Board. 
 
The Association’s total payroll eligible for pension benefits for the year ending June 30, 2015 was 
$2,456,822.  The Association’s contributions were calculated using the base salary amount of $2,456,822.  
The Association made the required 15% contribution amounting to $381,836.  There were no forfeitures for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  The amount of the Association’s liability outstanding at the end of the 
period is $14,967, which is reported in accounts payable. 
 

NOTE 11 – SOLID WASTE POLICY BOARD 
 
The Association’s Governing Board also services as the Solid Waste Policy Board (SWPB) for Merced 
County.  The SWPB is a separate Joint Powers Authority responsible for the Merced County Regional Waste 
Management Authority (the Authority) and the Merced County Solid Waste Enterprise.  A separate audit is 
performed for the Authority and financial information of the Authority can be viewed on the Merced County 
Association of Governments website at http://mcagov.org/publications/Swaste.html or obtained in writing to 
the Association’s Chief Financial Officer, 369 West 18th Street, Merced, California 95340. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Sales taxes 132,200$     132,200$     194,300$     62,100$       
State and local revenues 3,710,517    3,962,186    5,868,215    1,906,029    
Federal revenues 1,108,361    934,692       410,341       (524,351)      
Investment earnings -                   -                   959              959              

Total revenues 4,951,078    5,029,078    6,473,815    1,444,737    

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
Salaries and benefits 3,842,386    3,905,386    3,913,921    (8,535)          
Supplies and services 1,058,692    1,073,692    470,568       603,124       

Highways and streets -                   -                   2,295,420    (2,295,420)   
Capital outlay 50,000         50,000         23,873         26,127         
Other -                   -                   1,112           (1,112)          

Total expenditures 4,951,078    5,029,078    6,704,894    (1,675,816)   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures -                   -                   (231,079)      (231,079)      

Net change in fund balances -                   -                   (231,079)      (231,079)      

Fund balances - beginning 620,689       620,689       620,689       -                   

Fund balances - ending 620,689$    620,689$    389,610$    (231,079)$   

Budgeted Amounts

 
 



 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
State and local revenues 400,000$     400,000$     785,336$     385,336$      
Investment earnings 13,000         13,000         18,557         5,557            

Total revenues 413,000       413,000       803,893       390,893        

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government:
Supplies and services 10,000         3,010,000    443,220       2,566,780     

Highways and streets -                   -                   133,823       (133,823)       

Total expenditures 10,000         3,010,000    577,043       2,432,957     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 403,000       (2,597,000)   226,850       (2,042,064)    

Net change in fund balances 403,000     (2,597,000) 226,850     2,823,850     

Fund balances - beginning 3,568,518    3,568,518    3,568,518    -                    

Fund balances - ending 3,971,518$  971,518$     3,795,368$  2,823,850$   

Budgeted Amounts

 



 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Local transportation fund 7,116,000$  7,116,000$  6,504,645$  (611,355)$     
Investment earnings 9,000           9,000           26,204         17,204          

Total revenues 7,125,000    7,125,000    6,530,849    (594,151)       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Contributions to other local agencies 7,116,000    7,116,000    7,116,000    -                    

Total expenditures 7,116,000    7,116,000    7,116,000    -                    

Net change in fund balances 9,000         9,000         (585,151)    (594,151)      

Fund balances - beginning 1,600,185    1,600,185    3,070,463    1,470,278     

Fund balances - ending 1,609,185$ 1,609,185$ 2,485,312$ 876,127$     

Budgeted Amounts

 



 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATE EXCHANGE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
State and local revenues 2,250,000$  2,250,000$  2,583,456$  333,456$       
Investment earnings 2,000           2,000           945              (1,055)           

Total revenues 2,252,000    2,252,000    2,584,401    332,401         

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Contributions to other local agencies 2,352,000  2,352,000  2,583,455  (231,455)      

Total expenditures 2,352,000    2,352,000    2,583,455    (231,455)       

Net change in fund balances (100,000)    (100,000)    946             100,946        

Fund balances - beginning 105,108       105,108       105,108       -                    

Fund balances - ending 5,108$        5,108$        106,054$    100,946$      

Budgeted Amounts

 



 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
State and local revenues 1,435,984$    1,435,984$    1,355,360$    (80,624)$        
Investment earnings 900                900                2,754             1,854             

Total revenues 1,436,884      1,436,884      1,358,114      (78,770)          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Contributions to other local agencies 1,435,984    1,435,984    1,747,117    (311,133)       

Total expenditures 1,435,984      1,435,984      1,747,117      (311,133)        

Net change in fund balances 900              900              (389,003)       (389,903)       

Fund balances - beginning 91,475           91,475           475,359         383,884         

Fund balances - ending 92,375$         92,375$         86,356$         (6,019)$          

Budgeted Amounts

 



 

The notes to the required supplementary information are an integral part of this statement. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
SERVICE AUTHORITY FOR FREEWAY EMERGENCIES FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
State and local revenues 190,500$       190,500$       220,208$       29,708$        
Investment earnings 11,000           11,000           12,640           1,640            

Total revenues 201,500         201,500         232,848         31,348          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Supplies and services 45,000           45,000           17,775           27,225          

Total expenditures 45,000           45,000           17,775           27,225          

Net change in fund balances 156,500       156,500       215,073        58,573         

Fund balances - beginning 1,843,243      1,843,243      1,843,243      -                    

Fund balances - ending 1,999,743$   1,999,743$   2,058,316$   58,573$       

Budgeted Amounts
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all 
government funds.  The Association’s budget is a management tool that assists its users in analyzing 
financial activity for its fiscal year June 30.  The Association’s primary funding sources are federal, state, and 
local grants, which may have grant periods that may or may not coincide with the Association’s fiscal year.  
These grants normally are awarded for a twelve-month period; however, they can be awarded for periods 
shorter or longer than twelve months. 
 
The Association’s annual revenue estimates are based upon the best available information as to potential 
sources of funding.  The Association’s annual budget differs from that of most local governments due to the 
dependency upon federal, state and local grants, and the uncertain nature of those grant awards.  The 
resultant annual budget is subject to change within the fiscal year due to (1) increases/decreases in actual 
grant awards from those estimated; (2) changes in grant periods; (3) unanticipated grant awards not included 
in the initial budget; and (4) expected grant awards which fail to materialize. 
 
The budget is known as the Overall Work Program.  Management emphasis is given to complying with the 
grant budget, terms and conditions on a grant-by-grant basis.  These terms and conditions usually specify 
the period during which costs may be incurred and outline budget restrictions or allowances.  The 
Association follows the following procedures in establishing the general fund budget reflected in the general-
purpose financial statements: 
 

 In February, the Executive Director submits the Overall Work Program to the Technical Review 
Board, the Association’s Governing Board, and State and Federal agencies for the input on the 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. 

 The budget for the general fund is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

 Appropriations for the general fund lapse at the end of the fiscal year. 

 Revisions to the budget, which increase total expenditures, must be approved by the Governing 
Board. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
NOTE 2 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

The following funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the following amounts for the year 
ended June 30, 2014: 

 
General Fund: 
 Current: 

 Salaries and benefits $ 8,535 
 Supplies and services  2,295,420 
 Other  1,112 

 
Regional Transportation Impact Fund: 
 Current: 

 Highways and streets  133,823 
 
State Exchange Fund: 
 Current: 

 Contributions to other local agencies  231,455 
 
 
The excess expenditures were covered by available surpluses in other accounts or available fund balance in 
the funds. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SUMMARY OF RESOURCES AND EXPENDITURES BY WORK ELEMENT– MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 

Contributions
FHWA FTA TDA TDA from MCAG

Total PL Sec. 5303 Admin. Planning RIP TEA II CMAQ RTIF Members Other
Resources:
Interest 957$              -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                -$                  -$                   -$                   -$                   957$              
Other   134                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     134                
LTF Planning 132,200         -                     -                     -                     132,200         -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
FHWA/PL 332,171         332,171         -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
AME RIP 2,332,985      -                     -                     -                     -                     2,332,985   -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
RIP 113,924         -                     -                     -                     -                     113,924      -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
LTF Administration 62,100           -                     -                     62,100           -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
SP&R TPA 1,829             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  1,829            -                     -                     -                     -                     
CMAQ 3,601             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    3,601             -                     -                     -                     
One Voice 65,000           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     65,000           
FTA Sec. 5303 72,739           -                     72,739           -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
Contributions from members 92,200           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     92,200           -                     
Transit Policy Board 828,062         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     828,062         
Local Contracts 53,900           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     40,000           13,900           
RTIF 21,337           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     21,337           -                     -                     
MDSS, Inc. 2,187             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     2,187             

YARTS JPA 234,858         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     234,858         

Total Resources 4,350,184      332,171         72,739           62,100           132,200         2,446,909   1,829            3,601             21,337           132,200         1,145,098      
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SUMMARY OF RESOURCES AND EXPENDITURES BY WORK ELEMENT– MODIFIED CASH BASIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
(Continued) 

 
Contributions

FHWA FTA TDA TDA from MCAG
Total PL Sec. 5303 Admin. Planning RIP TEA II CMAQ RTIF Members Other

Expenditures:

Citizen Part. and Coord. 184,790         77,832           35,189           -                     -                     69,088        -                    -                     -                     -                     2,681             
Regional Transportation Plan 70,171           58,795           -                     -                     -                     8,516          -                    -                     -                     -                     2,860             
Air Quality Planning 12,294           2,403             7,846             -                     -                     2,045          -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
FTIP 42,338           33,254           8,674             -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     410                
Traffic Model 20,508           10,177           -                     -                     -                     10,331        -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
SJ Valley Trans. Coord. 68,594           28,666           29,704           -                     -                     6,088          -                    -                     -                     -                     4,136             
One Voice Education 45,250           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     45,250           
GIS Maintenance 81,379           81,379           -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
RTIF 23,562           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     23,562           -                     -                     
RTIP 45,477           35,170           -                     -                     -                     8,925          -                    -                     -                     -                     1,382             
Alternative Modes Program 4,753             4,497             -                     -                     -                     256             -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
TDM/Alternative Modes Program 4,267             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    4,267             -                     -                     -                     
TDA Administration 13,823           -                     -                     13,823           -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
Continuum of Care 77,175           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     77,175           
AVA 1,562             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     1,562             
SAFE 2,391             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     2,391             
AME 2,295,423      -                     -                     -                     -                     2,295,423   -                    -                     -                     -                     -                     
Transit JPA FTA Admin 813,643         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     813,643         
MDSS, Inc. 2,189             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     2,189             
YARTS JPA 234,951         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     234,951         
TEA-TI-SR-165 2,066             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  2,066            -                     -                     -                     -                     
RWMA 2,107,516      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     2,107,516      

MCAG Administration 550,772         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                  -                    -                     -                     -                     550,772         

Total expenditures 6,704,894      332,173         81,413           13,823           -                     2,400,672   2,066            4,267             23,562           -                     3,846,918      

Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (2,354,710)$   (2)$                 (8,674)$          48,277$         132,200$       46,237$      (237)$            (666)$             (2,225)$          132,200$       (2,701,820)$   
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF REGULAR ALLOCATIONS AND DISBURSEMENTS BY PURPOSE –  

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 
 

PUC 99233.2
Administration Planning PUC 99260(a) Total

Allocations

Transit Joint Powers Authority -$                  -$                  6,530,849$   6,530,849$    
County of Merced 3,000             -                    -                    3,000             
Merced County Association of Governments 62,100           132,200        -                    194,300         

65,100$         132,200$      6,530,849$   6,728,149$    

Disbursements

Transit Joint Powers Authority -$                  -$                  6,530,849$   6,530,849$    
County of Merced 3,000             -                    -                    3,000             
Merced County Association of Governments 62,100           132,200        -                    194,300         

65,100$         132,200$      6,530,849$   6,728,149$    
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF REGULAR ALLOCATIONS AND DISBURSEMENTS BY PURPOSE 

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 
 

PUC 93313 PUC 93314 Total Disbursements

Transit Joint Powers Authority 1,326,384$    28,976$         1,355,360$    1,355,360$      

Allocations
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF REGULAR ALLOCATIONS AND DISBURSEMENTS BY PURPOSE 

REGIONAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM EXCHANGE FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 
 

Allocations Disbursements

City of Atwater 304,164$         304,164$         

City of Dos Palos 53,179             53,179             

City of Gustine 59,209             59,209             

City of Livingston 143,283           143,283           

City of Los Banos 385,190           385,190           

City of Merced 852,894           852,894           

County of Merced 785,537           785,537           

2,583,456$      2,583,456$      

Section 182.6
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES BY JURISDICTION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
 

City of Atwater 234,471$             

City of Merced 247,080               

County of Merced 303,785               

785,336$             
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGES 

JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
Amount of 

Type of Coverage Coverage Effective Date

1,297,900$     2/13/14-2/13/15

1,297,900$     2/13/15-2/13/16

281,200$        2/13/14-2/13/15

281,200$        2/13/15-2/13/16

500,000$        2/13/14-2/13/15

500,000$        2/13/15-2/13/16

2,000,000$     2/13/14-2/13/15

2,000,000$     2/13/15-2/13/16

2,000,000$     2/13/14-2/13/15

2,000,000$     2/13/15-2/13/16

1,000,000$     (each occurrence) 2/13/14-2/13/15

1,000,000$     (each occurrence) 2/13/15-2/13/16

100,000$        (each occurrence) 2/13/14-2/13/15

100,000$        (each occurrence) 2/13/15-2/13/16

5,000$            (any one person) 2/13/14-2/13/15

5,000$            (any one person) 2/13/15-2/13/16

1,000,000$     2/13/14-2/13/15

1,000,000$     2/13/15-2/13/16

1,000,000$     (collision) 2/13/14-2/13/15

1,000,000$     (collision) 2/13/15-2/13/16

5,000$            (each person) 2/13/14-2/13/15

5,000$            (each person) 2/13/15-2/13/16

1,000,000$     (collision) 2/13/14-2/13/15

1,000,000$     (collision) 2/13/15-2/13/16

Building

Business Property

Business Income/Extra Expense

General Aggregate

Products and Completed Operations Aggregate

Personal and Advertising Injury

Damage to Rental Premises

Medical Expense

Employee Benefits

Automobile - Liability

Automobile - Medical Payments

Automobile - Uninsured Motorist
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 

To the Governing Board of the  
Merced County Association of Governments 
Merced, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Merced County Association of Governments (the 
Association), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Association’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 7, 2015. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Association’s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Association’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Association’s financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the Association’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for 
any other purpose. 

 

Clovis, California 
December 7, 2015 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH RULES AND REGULATIONS 
OF THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT 

 
 
To the Governing Board of the  
Merced County Association of Governments 
 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Merced County Association of Governments 
(the Association) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, which collectively comprise the Association’s 
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 7, 2015.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, and was further made to determine compliance with the Transportation 
Development Act, the California Administrative Code, and the rules and regulations of the Association. 
 
Compliance 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
the financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  Among the other items considered was determination of the Association’s ability to receive funds 
allocated to it, and propriety of expenditures made in accordance with the Transportation Development Act and 
the regulations of the Association. 
 
In our opinion, our evaluation of compliance factors disclosed that the funds received by the Association under 
the Transportation Development Act were allocated and disbursed in conformance with the Transportation 
Development Act, the California Administrative Code, and the rules and regulations of the Association. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Governing Board and management of the 
Merced County Association of Governments, others within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and 
pass-through entities and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

 

Clovis, California 
December 7, 2015 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no

 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported. 
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MERCED COUNTY ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported. 
 
 
 
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
None reported. 
 


